
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
19 October 2023 

 
Dear Councillor  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Meeting of the Finance Committee at which your 
attendance is summoned, will be held at Teignmouth Town Council, Bitton House, 
Bitton Park Road, Teignmouth, TQ149DF on Tuesday, 24th October, 2023 at 4.30 pm 
to transact the business specified in the Agenda as set out. 
 
 

Iain Wedlake 
Town Clerk 
 

Distribution:  Councillors J Atkins (Chair), L Chasteau, J Jackson, M Jackman, V Rudge 
and C Williams (Vice-Chair) 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
For information – to be taken as read: 
 
1 Declarations of Interest – Members are reminded that they should 

declare any interest in the items to be considered and are also advised 
that the timescale to alter their stated interests with the District Council’s 
Monitoring Officer is 28 days. 
 

2 Items requiring urgent attention – to consider those items which, in 
the opinion of the Committee Chair, should be considered by the 
meeting as matter of urgency (if any). To be taken at the end of the 
meeting. 
 

3 The Freedom of Information Act 2000 deems that all information held 
by this Council should be freely available to the public unless it falls 
under one of 23 exemptions.   
 

4 The Data Protection Act 2018 precludes this Authority from publishing 
the names, addresses or other private information of individuals unless 
written permission is given by the individual for such details to be made 
public.  Therefore, where necessary, personal details have been 
removed from the papers attached to ensure that information held is 
available, but individuals are protected. 
 

5 Mobile telephones Councillors and members of the public are 
requested to ensure that mobile phones are switched to ‘silent’ during 
the meeting to avoid disruption. 
 

6 Recording this meeting may be filmed or audio taped. 
 

7 Public Participation: 
 Members of the public will be given an opportunity to address 

Councillors present at this meeting regarding agenda items, at the 
discretion of the Chairman.  The comments of members of the public 
and electors of the parish who speak before the start of the meeting or 
following the close of the meeting will not form part of the Minutes of the 
meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 
 
 
 
 

 

A G E N D A 
PART I 
(Open to the Public) 
  
1. Apologies for Absence   
 

To receive, note and where requested, approve the reasons for apologies for absence. 
  

2. Declarations of Interest   
 

To declare any disclosable interests relating to the forthcoming items of business (if any). 
  

3. Dispensations   
 

To receive and consider requests for dispensation (if any). 
  

4. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

To approve, sign and adopt the minutes of the Finance meeting held on XXXX. 
  

5. Events 2024   
 

To identify what events the council will directly fund during the 2024/5 financial year. 
  
Previous events: - 
  
Contracted summer entertainment        5,000 
Armed Forces Day                                       5,000 
Teignmouth in bloom                                 1,200 
Battle of Britain                                               100 
Fireworks event with Shaldon                   3,750 
Remembrance Sunday (inc 11/11)              550 
Christmas lights switch on event.       7,500 
Mayors events (inc civic service)       2,650 
  

6. Grant applications   
  

a) Teign Heritage  (Pages 7 - 52) 
  
b) Teignmouth youth choir  (Pages 53 - 74) 
  

7. Quarter 2 budget report (draft)  (Pages 75 - 84) 
 

To review the draft Q2 budget report. It is draft as month 6 is not yet reconciled.  
 
  

Page 3



 
 
 
 
 

 

8. 2024/2025 Budget planning   
 

To set and agree a draft meeting timetable for budget setting by the finance committee and 
provisional informal councillor’s meetings with a view to getting is agreed at the full council 
on 12th December 2023. 
With formal finance committee recommendation by 5th December 2023 latest.  
  

9. Dates of future meetings   
  

Page 4



TEIGNMOUTH TOWN COUNCIL 

 
1 

 

Minutes of a Meeting of the 
Finance Committee 

held at Teignmouth Town Council, Bitton House, Bitton Park Road, Teignmouth, 
TQ149DF on 

Tuesday, 18th July, 2023 at 5.00 pm 
 

Present: 
Councillors  , J Atkins, L Chasteau, J Jackson and C Williams 

Absent: 
M Jackman and V Rudge 

Officers In attendance: 
 Town Clerk 

80 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Jackman 
  
Resolved that the apology be noted. 
  
 

81 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
  
None were received. 
 

82 DISPENSATIONS  
 
There were no dispensations. 
  
 

83 MINUTES  
 
Members considered the minutes of the Finance meeting held on 29th June 2023. 
  
Resolved that the minutes of the Finance meetings held on 29th June 2023 be 
approved and signed as a correct and accurate record of the meeting. 
Proposed Cllr Williams Seconded Cllr Chasteau Unanimous. 
 

84 Grant applications  
 
 

85 STANDING LONGER TERM GRANTS  
 
Museum  
It was resolved to pay the museum a grant of £2,000 together with a copy of our 
new grants policy and that they will need to apply annually going forward. 
Proposed Cllr Atkins Seconded Cllr Chasteau Unanimous 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 
2 

  
Heartbeat 
It was resolved to pay Heartbeat a grant of £600 together with a copy of our new 
grants policy and that they will need to apply annually going forward. 
Proposed Cllr Jackson Seconded Cllr Atkins Unanimous 
 

86 New Grant applications  
 
 
86.1 TAAG  
 
It was resolved to pay a grant of £1,500. 
Proposed Cllr Williams Seconded Cllr Jackson Unanimous 
 
86.2 Teignmouth Carnival  
 
It was resolved that the application was ineligible as is does not meet the council’s 
current policy/criteria  
Proposed Cllr Atkins Seconded Cllr Chasteau Unanimous 
It was suggested that sources such as district councillors funds may be an option. 
 

87 TIB FUNDING  
 
It was resolved to; Vire any unspent monies from the TIB gardening workshop 
budget and the proportion of the decorative features town budget allocated to flower 
planting and unspent. Into the TIB budget line. 
Proposed Cllr Atkins Seconded Cllr Chasteau Unanimous 
 

88 REVIEW OF BUDGET OUT TURN FOR  Q1 2023-4  
 
The Q1 budget was reviewed and a number of minor anomalies will be investigated 
by officers. 
 

 
The meeting was closed by the Chairman at Time Not Specified  
 

............................................................... 
Cllr   
 

 

Page 6



Page 7

Agenda Item 6a



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



 

 1 

 

 
 

Teignmouth Town Council  
GRANT APPLICATION 

 
 

Please answer all questions – failure to do so may result in a 
delay in the determination of your application 

 
Q1 Contact Details 

Name of organisation making application:  

Teignmouth Youth Choir 

Name of your project (if this is different):  

N/A 

Name of contact for this application 

 

Title : Mrs. First Name: Zoe  Surname: Moore 
 

Position held in the organisation: 

Secretary 

Contact Address, including full postcode: 

 

2 The Yannons 
 
Teignmouth 
 
Devon 
 

TQ14 9UE 
 

Contact Telephone Number:   07811 341034 

 

Email address: teignmouthyouthchoir@gmail.com 
Page 53

Agenda Item 6b



 

 2 

About your organisation 
 

Q2 What type of organisation are you? 
Tick () relevant category: 
 
Registered Charity: ( No   ) Charity Registration Number …………………………. 
 

 Voluntary Organisation: ( Yes ) 
 

 Other – Please specify:   …………………………………………………………….. 
 

Q3 When was your organisation established? 

September 2023 

Q4 Briefly describe the purpose of your organisation. 
Describe the usual activities/services you provide. 

If you are a new organisation, describe the services/activities you plan to provide. 

 

Youth choir for children age 7 – 16, we meet on a Monday during term time at the 

Alice Cross Centre.  We hope to perform in the local area bring enjoyment to both 

the children and the audience. 

 

Q5 If you are a subsidiary of a larger organisation, please state which one; 

  No 

Q6 Does your organisation have an agreed constitution or Memorandum of 
Association? 
Please state which and attach a copy: 

 

Constitution  

 
Q7 Previous Applications 

If you have applied for and received funding from Teignmouth Town Council in the 

past please provide details of the amount, the year and briefly what the funding 

was used for. 

N/A 
 
 
 

Page 54



 

 3 

Details of the project or activities you are planning 
 

Q8 Describe the projects/activities you plan to use this grant for. 
 
Try to be specific about what you will do and how you will do it. 
 
Teignmouth Youth Choir is a newly formed choir group for children aged 7 - 16. 
We meet on Monday afternoons from 1545 - 1630 throughout school term time at 
the Alice Cross Centre in Teignmouth.  
 
We hope to become an active and visible group within the community of 
Teignmouth and surrounding areas, in order to provide both a performance 
platform for the choir and uplifting entertainment for audiences.  
 
There is much evidence to support the beneficial effects of singing on children's 
wellbeing and mental health and this is something we are keen to promote. 
Through working with a professional Musical Director, learning to sing in 
harmonies/parts and exposure to sheet music children will develop and broaden 
their musical understanding and awareness. Through performing publicly they can 
develop their confidence, team building skills and self-worth.  
 
The local council have offered their support to this venture as they can see the 
potential value of providing an opportunity for beneficial social interaction for 
young people in the area. There is currently no other provision of a youth choir in 
the town.  
 
Our initial performances are already lined up for the end of November, firstly at 
the Teignmouth Christmas Light Switch on, this is in the centre of the town and 
attracts a large number of families. This opportunity has arisen through the 
interest of the local council. We hope that this performance will encourage new 
members to join and we will have flyers on hand with details.  
 
Our second performance is at a local care home for residents with dementia. We 
hope this performance of some Christmas classics will bring enjoyment to both 
the residents and the children who are performing, fostering intergenerational 
understanding.  
 
The aim of the choir is to be accessible to all, with a minimal fee to families of £15 
per half term. We feel this is especially important in the current economic climate 
and at a time when families may not be able to afford one to one music lessons 
for their children.  
 
If allocated this grant we would put it towards the following:  
- Advertising (printing posters and flyers) 
 - Sheet music costs (specifically Christmas)  
- Logo'd sweatshirts for performances (subsidised for low income families)  
 
 
Please state how you have identified this need and how the project will 
benefit the people of Teignmouth, together with the estimated time span. 
 

Page 55



 

 4 

The project will give children in Teignmouth an extra-curricular activity outside of 

the school environment, something which is currently lacking in the area.  It will 

give them the opportunity to mix with peers whom they wouldn’t normally meet.  

We aim to keep costs to a minimum through the help of grants, making it 

accessible to all.  The choir is newly formed, but already going from strength to 

strength, hopefully a project that will continue in the town for many years. 

Q9  What criteria will you use to measure the success of the project and how 
many people from the Town do you expect to benefit for the 
project/activity? 
 
The success will be measured by the number of children who choose to attend, 

something that we hope to rise in the future.  However, many more local people 

and visitors will benefit from the choir through our public performances, the first of 

which is in November at the Christmas light switch on. 

Q10 What, if any, special safety issues are related to your project/activity? 
 
Please provide the following information – 

 
i) What kind of insurance does your organisation have? 

Insured through Alice Cross Centre at rehearsals, musical director, Ilana 

Jacobs holds public liability insurance through ‘Musicians Union’. 

ii)  Do the leaders have the relevant qualifications and/or experience? 

 
All DBS checked.   
 
Ilana Jacobs, Musical Director, Bachelor of Music, Royal Northern College of 
Music, Licentiate Trinity College London, Singing Teacher’s Diploma.  
(Visiting Music Teacher of singing and piano for several schools in the area.)  
 
Zoe Moore, Secretary, previous experience as Teignmouth Regatta Treasurer, 
Teignmouth Scouting Group Treasurer, Parent Helper at Teignmouth Beach Life-
saving club, 10 years as Treasurer for local school PTA. 
 

iii) What policies does your organisation have in place (i.e. Health and Safety, 

Safeguarding, etc.)? 

Safeguarding, Constitution.  Health and Safety, Fire, First Aid all held within 

Alice Cross Centre. 

 

Page 56



 

 5 

Q11 Please provide details of the amount of funding you need for your project 
and give us a breakdown of what the money is for (please enclose any 
relevant estimates or details). 
 
Tell us the amount of grant requested £500 (anything possible towards our start 
up costs) and provide a detailed breakdown as to how you have reached this 
figure. 
 
Sheet Music - £100 

Hoodies for children to wear at performances - £300 (Contribution towards to 

assist parents) 

Advertising - £50 – flyers for handing out at performances. 

Stage piano for performances - £700 
 
Tell us how much money the project will cost in total:  £1150 
 
How much money has been raised towards this sum:  £0  

 

 

Please list the amounts and sources of funds that you expect to receive for other 

funding sources.  

Children to pay £15 per half term to attend (if they can afford to) 

Applied to Devon Educational Trust for up to £500 towards the above – awaiting 

outcome of application in November. 

 

Q12 Any other information which you consider to be relevant to your application. 
 
………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 
Q 13 Please give us your bank or building society account details 

 
You can only apply for a grant if you have a bank/building society account in the 
name of your organisation.  We will only pay grants into an account which 
requires at least two people to sign each cheque or withdrawal.  These people 
should not be related. 

Page 57



 

 6 

 
Account name:  Teignmouth Youth Choir 
 
Sort code: 60-21-47 
 
Account number: 58678123 
 
Bank/Building Society name: Natwest 
 
Bank/Building Society address 
 
250 Bishopsgate 
London 
EC2M 4AA 
 
 
 
 
Who are the signatories and what position do they hold in your organisation? 
 
1 Name Zoe Moore    Position  Secretary 

2 Name Ilana Jacobs    Position  Musical Director 

3  Name …………………………………. Position  …………………………. 

 
Q14 Please provide a copy of your most recent annual audited accounts or, in 

the case of newly established organisations, the projected income and 
expenditure for the next twelve months. 
 
Please attach your most recent audited accounts or financial projections for a new 
organisation. You need to include these documents with this application. 
 
 

Q15 Declaration 
 
Please give details of a senior member of your organisation.   
For example, this may be your Chairperson, Treasurer or Secretary.  They must 
read the application and sign below.  (This must not be the main contact name 
in Q1). 
 
 
I confirm, on behalf of Zoe Moore(Teignmouth Youth Choir) 
 
That I am authorised to sign this declaration on its behalf, and that, to the best of 
my knowledge and belief, all replies are true and accurate. 
 
I confirm that I have read the Terms and Conditions set out in the Notes which 
accompanied this application and further confirm that this application is made on 
the basis that if successful, the organisation will be bound to use the grant only for 
the purpose specified in this application, and will have to comply with those Terms 
and Conditions and any others which the Council might attach to the Grant.  

Page 58



 

 7 

 
Post held in organisation:  Secretary 

 

Title Mrs  First Name: Zoe    Surname: Moore 
 
Contact address: 
 
2 The Yannons 

Teignmouth 

Devon 

TQ14 9UE   

Telephone: 07811 341034 

 

Signed:  Zoe Moore   Date:  28/09/23 

 
 
Q16 Signature of Person Completing the Application 

This must be the signature of the person named in Q1 as the main contact and 
not be the same person who has signed in Q15 
 
 
I confirm that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, all the information in this 
application from is true and correct. I understand that you may ask for additional 
information at any stage of the application process. 
Signed:  Zoe Moore… Date:  28/09/23 
 
 

I agree that by completing and submitting this Grant Application Form, that the 
Council may process my personal information for providing information and 

corresponding with me but will not otherwise share that data.  
Specifically, I agree that the Council can keep the contact information data I have 

provided within the Form for the purposes of this Grant Application. Should the 
organisation be successful in securing a Grant this information may be kept for a 
period of 6 months.  If however the Application is unsuccessful I would expect the 

Form to be destroyed as soon as the decision making process has been 
completed and the organisation has been advised to that effect. 

I am aware that I can request that my personal information be destroyed at my 
request, but I accept that this may impact the communication the Council would 

be able to have with the organisation. 
 
Signed:  Zoe Moore…….Date  28/09/23 
 
Please return your completed application form to: 
 

Town Clerk 
Teignmouth Town Council 

Bitton House 
Bitton Park Road 

Page 59



 

 8 

TQ14 9DF 
 

Telephone: 01626 242085 
Email:townclerk@teignmouth-devon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GDPR and Data Protection 
 
Here at Teignmouth Town Council we are committed to ensuring that your privacy is 
protected by adhering to the principles of the EU General Data Protection Regulation 
(GDPR).  Should we ask you to provide certain personal information by which you can 
be identified for the purpose of a contract with us, signing up to our mailing list, 
newsletter or use of our website, then you can be assured that it will only be used for the 
purpose it was collected.   
 
It will never be used by any third party for any other form of processing or marketing 
purposes.   
 
Teignmouth Town Council does not pass on any of its data to third parties other than 
those specified to undertake the contract entered into. 
 
Teignmouth Town Council may change this policy from time to time by updating this  
statement.  Statement can be found at: - 
 
Teignmouth Town Council Privacy Notice Web Link 

 

Page 60

https://www.teignmouth-devon.gov.uk/_UserFiles/Files/Policies/Privacy%20Notice%202018.pdf


Teignmouth Youth Choir  

Projected Income/Expenditure 2023/24 

Income £ 
20 Children (hopefully this will increase, but unknown at present @ £15 per half 
term, six half terms in year)  

1800.00 

Grants – Devon Educational Trust, Councillors Community Fund, Other Grants 1000.00 
Total 2800.00 

  
Outgoings  
Alice Cross Centre @£15 per week (36 weeks) 540.00 
Musical Director Staffing Fees @£33 per week 1188.00 
Sheet music purchase/printing 300.00 
Purchase of stage piano for performances 700.00 

Total 2728.00 
 

    

   

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Teignmouth Youth Choir 

Constitution 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 63



1 Name  

The name of the Association is the “Teignmouth Youth Choir” (hereafter called “the Choir”).  

 

2 Objects  

The objects of the Choir shall be to  

1 Study, practise and perform a wide variety of musical styles to allow 

members a broad musical development. 

  2 Bring children together in a socially acceptable manner.  

3  Entertain audiences and perform in the local community.  

4  Instil and develop confidence and self-esteem in members by public 

performance. 

5  Foster team spirit inclusion as a whole group.  

6  Support local and national charities in fund-raising concerts.  

The choir gives equal opportunities to all members regardless of faith, ethnicity, disability or 

gender.  

 

3 Membership  

(a) Singing membership shall be open to all youths aged 7 to 16 inclusive at the discretion of 

the Musical Director, provided that there are vacancies in appropriate parts of the Choir. 

 

4 Management  

All arrangements for concerts and other events and the control of finances shall be in the 

hands of the management committee.  The management committee is made up of the 

musical director and secretary of the choir and everyone is responsible for the choir’s 

affairs.   

The Musical Director shall have the power to select the music to be sung by the Choir.  

 

5 Finance  

(i) The financial year shall end on 31st August.  

(ii) A banking account shall be opened in the name of the Choir and cheques shall be 

signed by any of the management committee. 

Page 64



(iii) The Choir may receive donations, grants in aid and financial guarantees and 

tickets income for any or all of its concerts and other events may be offered for 

sale to the public.  

(iv) The income and property of the Choir whencesoever derived shall be applied 

solely towards promoting the objects of the Choir as set forth above and no 

portion thereof shall be paid or transferred either directly or indirectly to any 

member or members of the Choir except in payment of legitimate expenses 

occurred on behalf of the Choir and in payment of honoraria agreed by the 

management committee and any moneys not required for the immediate 

purposes of the Choir shall be invested in securities in which trust money may 

lawfully be invested with power from time to time to transpose such 

investments.  

(v) The financial accounts are available on request. 

(vi) Members shall pay a half termly subscription on commencement of joining the 

choir. 

 

6 Alterations to the Constitution 

The Constitution may only be altered at any duly convened General Meeting and 

provided the precise wording of the proposed alteration shall have been provided in the 

notice of the meeting sent to committee members of the Association. Only the 

management committee may direct that a proposed alteration to the Constitution shall 

be included in the notice of a General Meeting.  

 

7 Dissolution  

In the event of the Choir being wound up, any assets remaining upon dissolution after 

the payment of proper debts and liabilities shall be transferred to a charitable institution 

or institutions having similar objects to those of the Choir.  

 

Signed:       Signed: 

 

 

 

Ilana Jacobs      Zoe Moore 

Musical Director      Secretary 

18/09/23       18/09/23 

 

Page 65



 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



 

 

 

Teignmouth Youth Choir 

Children’s Safeguarding 

Policy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



  
Role Name Email 

Safeguarding Leads Ilana Jacobs – Musical Director 
Zoe Moore – Secretary 

Ilana_jacobs@yahoo.co.uk 
Zoemoore1@hotmail.co.uk 

Worried that a child is a risk? If you think it, report it. 
If you are concerned about the safety of a child or young person and want to speak to 

someone, or if you are a child or young person worried about your own safety, you can 

contact any of the following agencies for support: 

MASH (Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub) 
Tel 0345 155 1071  
email  
mashsecure@devon.gov.uk 
 

LADO (Local Authority Designated Officer) 
Tel 01392 384964 
email 
childsc.localauthoritydesignatedofficersecure-
mailbox@devon.gov.uk 

NSPCC 
Website https://www.nspcc.org.uk/  
Tel 0808 800 5000 

Childline 
Website https://www.childline.org.uk  
Tel 0800 1111 

If you think a child or young person is at immediate risk, contact the police on 999 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 68

mailto:Ilana_jacobs@yahoo.co.uk
mailto:mashsecure@devon.gov.uk
mailto:childsc.localauthoritydesignatedofficersecure-mailbox@devon.gov.uk
mailto:childsc.localauthoritydesignatedofficersecure-mailbox@devon.gov.uk
https://www.nspcc.org.uk/
https://www.childline.org.uk/


Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy 

1. Safeguarding statement 

Safeguarding is everyone’s responsibility. Teignmouth Youth Choir recognises our 

responsibility to protect and safeguard the welfare of children and young people. We 

endeavour to provide a safe and welcoming environment where children and young people 

are respected, valued, and always feel safe. 

 

2. Terminology 

Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children/young people is defined as:  

• protecting children/young people from maltreatment, 

• preventing impairment of children/young people's mental and physical health or 

development, 

• ensuring that children/young people grow up in circumstances consistent with the 

provision of safe and effective care; and 

• taking action to enable all children/young people to have the best outcomes.  

Child Protection is a part of safeguarding and promoting welfare. It refers to the activity 

that is undertaken to protect specific children/young people who are suffering, or are 

likely to suffer, significant harm. 

Staff refers to all those working for or on behalf of the organisation, full or part time, 

temporary or permanent, in either a paid or voluntary capacity, including self-employed 

individuals. 

Child includes everyone under the age of 18 or 25 if a care leaver. 

Parents refers to birth parents and other adults who are in a parenting role, for example 

stepparents, foster carers, adoptive parents and LA corporate parents. 

 

3. Legal framework 

This policy has been drawn up on the basis of law and guidance that seeks to protect 

children/young people, namely:  

• Children’s Act 1989 

• United Convention of the Rights of the Child 1991 

• Data Protection Act 1998 and subsequent data protection guidance 

• Human Rights Act 1998 

• Sexual Offences Act 2003 

• Children’s Act 2004 

• The Mental Capacity Act (2005) 

• Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 

• Protection of Freedom Act 2012 

• Children and Families Act 2014 

• The Care Act (2014) 

Page 69



• The Care Act (2014) Care and Support Statutory Guidance (specifically the 

safeguarding section of this) 

• Special educational needs and disability (SEND) code of practice: 0 to 25 years – 

Statutory guidance for organisations which work with and support children/young 

people who have special educational needs or disabilities; HM Government (2014) 

• Information sharing: Advice for practitioners providing safeguarding services to 

children/young people, young people, parents and carers; HM Government (2015) 

• Counterterrorism and Security Act 2015 

• Working together to safeguard children: a guide to inter-agency working to 

safeguard and promote the welfare of children; HM Government (2015) 

• General Data Protection Regulations (European Union) (2017) 

 

4. The purpose of the policy: 

• To demonstrate our commitment to safeguarding and child protection to 

children/young people, parents, staff and other stakeholders. We recognise that all 

staff have a duty to protect children/young people from harm and have an equal 

responsibility to act on any suspicion or disclosure that may suggest a child/young 

person is at risk of harm. 

• To provide all staff with guidance on the procedures they should adopt if they 

suspect a child/young person may be experiencing, or be at risk of experiencing, 

harm. Including (by Safeguarding Leads and supporting agencies) consideration to 

the use of appropriate assessments and resources. 

• To provide clarity and expectations on professional behaviours and ensure all staff 

have been checked as to their suitability, including verification of their identity, 

qualifications, and a satisfactory DBS check, and that appropriate records are 

maintained. 

 

We recognise that: 

The welfare of the child/young person is paramount:  

• All children/young people, regardless of age ability, gender reassignment, race, 

religion or belief, sex, or sexual orientation have an equal right to protection from all 

types of harm or abuse. 

• Some children/young people are additionally vulnerable because of the impact of 

previous experiences, their level of dependency, communication needs or other 

issues. 

• Working in partnership with children/young people, their parents, carers and other 

agencies is essential in promoting young people’s welfare. 

 

We will seek to safeguard children/young people/young people by: 

• Appointing a Safeguarding Leads for children/young people. 

• Recruiting staff safely, ensuring all necessary checks are made. 

Page 70



• Sharing information about safeguarding and child protection measures with staff, 

parents and children/young people and other stakeholders. 

• Sharing concerns with other agencies who need to know and involving parents and 

children/young people appropriately. 

• Providing effective support and training for staff. 

• Drawing on support from other agencies to manage any allegations against staff. 

• Ensuring that we provide a safe physical environment for children/young people and 

staff, by applying health and safety measures in accordance with the law and 

regulatory guidance. 

• Reviewing our policy and Code of Practice annually. 

 

5. Responsibilities of the Safeguardings 

• When there are concerns about the welfare of any child/young person, staff are 

expected to share those concerns with the Safeguarding Leads. 

• The Safeguarding Leads are responsible for: 

o Monitoring and recording concerns. 

o Seeking advice and support from other agencies without delay. 

o Liaison with staff, parents (where appropriate) and other agencies. 

o Arranging appropriate child protection training for staff and ensuring all 

necessary checks are in place. 

o Ensuring this policy is implemented; communicated to staff, parents and 

other stakeholders; and reviewed annually.  

 

6. Our Code of Practice 

• Inappropriate physical contact with children/young people must be avoided. Physical 

contact is only appropriate in very limited circumstances. For more detailed advice 

please see the Guidance for Private Music Teachers set out in the Appendix to the 

ISM (Independent Society of Musicians) Code of Conduct.  

• It is not good practice to take children/young people alone in a car on journeys, 

however short, unless with the prior consent of the child/young person’s parent or 

carer, and then only in exceptional circumstances.  

• Do not make suggestive or inappropriate remarks to or about a child/young person, 

even in fun, as this could be misinterpreted. Inappropriate remarks include 

innuendo, swearing, and discussing their or your own intimate relationships.  

• Other than in exceptional circumstances, do not communicate directly with 

children/young people by email or text messages and only then with the prior 

consent of the child/young person’s parent or guardian. If electronic communication 

is necessary, best practice would be to communicate directly with parents or 

guardians.  

• Never communicate with children/young people via Twitter, Facebook or other 

social media.  

Page 71

https://www.ism.org/advice/ism-members-code-of-conduct


• Do not engage in behaviour which could be construed as ‘grooming’ a child/young 

person (for example giving a child/young person money, presents or favours or 

talking or behaving in an inappropriate or unprofessional manner towards 

children/young people).  

• Do take a disclosure of abuse from a child/young person seriously. It is important not 

to deter children/young people from making a ‘disclosure’ of abuse through fear of 

not being believed, and to listen to what they have to say. Guidance on responding 

to an allegation of abuse is set out in section 4 of this document. If the allegation 

gives rise to a child protection concern it is important to follow the ISM’s procedure 

for reporting such concerns, and not to attempt to investigate the concern yourself.  

• Remember that those who abuse children/young people can be of any age (even 

other children/young people), gender, ethnic background or class, and it is important 

not to allow personal preconceptions about people to prevent appropriate action 

taking place.  

• Good practice includes valuing and respecting children/young people as individuals, 

and the adult modelling of appropriate conduct - which will always exclude bullying, 

shouting, racism, sectarianism or sexism.  

 

7. Guidance for staff on responding to a child/young person making a disclosure: 

• Stay calm. 

• Listen carefully to what is said and show that you are taking it seriously. 

• Find an appropriate and early opportunity to explain that it is likely that the 

information will need to be shared with others – do not promise to keep secrets. 

• Tell the child/young person that the matter will only be disclosed to those who need 

to know about it. 

• Allow the child to continue at their own pace.  

• Ask questions for clarification only and avoid questions that suggest a particular 

answer. 

• Reassure the child that they have done the right thing in telling you. 

• Tell them what you will do next, and with whom the information will be shared. 

• Make no judgement about what you have heard. 

• Record in writing what was said, using the child’s own words as soon as possible – 

include the date, time, any names mentioned, to whom the information was given 

and ensure that the record is signed and dated. 

• Remember that whilst you may have been the first person encountering an 

allegation of abuse it is not your responsibility to decide whether abuse has 

occurred. That is a task for the professional child protection agencies. 

 

8. How to report your concerns 

Page 72



• Staff could have their suspicion or concern raised in several ways, the most likely of 

which are:  

o The conduct of another member of staff or adult.  

o A disclosure from a child/young person.  

o Bruising or evidence of physical hurt.   

o Unusual behaviour by a child.  

• Any concerns should be reported immediately to the Safeguarding Leads, who 

should seek advice and support from other agencies without delay. 

• If a child in your care has suffered a serious injury as a result of abuse, seek medical 

attention immediately and then inform. 

 

9. Urgent enquiries 

• If you believe that urgent action is required, contact the Multi Agency Safeguarding 
Hub (MASH) Tel 0345 155 1071 and give as much information as you can.  

• Your information will be passed immediately to a manager who will decide the 
action needed and will normally respond to you within one hour.  

• You must follow up your telephone call by sending a completed referral form to 
MASH within 48 hours.  

• If you think a child or young person is at immediate risk, contact the police on 999. 

 

10. Further guidance and support 

• Devon Education Services publish a series of One Minute Guides that cover a wide 

range of pertinent topics and provide a useful resource for staff. 

• Advice and support can also be accessed via the NSPCC website or free 24-hour Child 

Protection Helpline Tel 0808 800 5000. 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 73

https://www.dcfp.org.uk/keeping-children-safe/multi-agency-safeguarding-hub-in-devon/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/support-schools-settings/safeguarding/guidance-policy-and-tools-2/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/support-schools-settings/safeguarding/guidance-policy-and-tools-2/safeguarding-one-minute-guides/
https://learning.nspcc.org.uk/safeguarding-child-protection


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75

Agenda Item 7



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6a Teign Heritage
	6b Teignmouth youth choir
	GRANT APPLICATION
	Q1	Contact Details
	Q2	What type of organisation are you?
	Q3	When was your organisation established?
	Q4	Briefly describe the purpose of your organisation.
	Q5	If you are a subsidiary of a larger organisation, please state which one;
	Q6	Does your organisation have an agreed constitution or Memorandum of Association?
	Q7	Previous Applications
	Q8	Describe the projects/activities you plan to use this grant for.
	Q9 	What criteria will you use to measure the success of the project and how many people from the Town do you expect to benefit for the project/activity?
	Q10	What, if any, special safety issues are related to your project/activity?
	Q11	Please provide details of the amount of funding you need for your project and give us a breakdown of what the money is for (please enclose any relevant estimates or details).
	Q12	Any other information which you consider to be relevant to your application.
	Q 13	Please give us your bank or building society account details
	Q14	Please provide a copy of your most recent annual audited accounts or, in the case of newly established organisations, the projected income and expenditure for the next twelve months.
	Q15	Declaration
	Q16	Signature of Person Completing the Application
	GDPR and Data Protection


	Projected Income and Expenditure
	Teignmouth Youth Choir Constitution
	Teignmouth Youth Choir Safeguarding Policy

	7 Quarter 2 budget report (draft)

